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statutes are: 

.. 

disputes. 

" (1986). 

Complaints 

or other rights 
may be able to file a complaint with a responsible governmental agency. The agency will 
investigate the complaint. If an agency finds that violations ofthe law have occurred, it can 
sometimes impose various sanctions on the violator and award various remedies to the individual 
who filed the complaint. 
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CHAPTER I 

RACIAL, ETHNIC, RELIGIOUS, AND MINORITY VIOLENCE 

Violence inflicted because of the particular victim's perceived or actual race, color, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, political affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, age, or physical or mental 
disability is an all too common occurrence in some areas of California. So-called hate groups too 
often transform their rhetoric to action. Cross-burnings, the desecration of our places of worship, 
gay-bashings, and other such hateful criminal activities have no place in our society. To eliminate 
such violence, California has specific laws, both civil and criminal, which are designed to protect 
people from this type of violence and to punish severely those who engage in such offensive 
behavior. 

The Ralph Civil Rights Act 

The Ralph Civil Rights Act, Civil Code section 51.7, addresses the repugnance of racial, ethnic, 
religious, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, and political violence in California by providing 
civil and administrative remedies for those who are victims of this type of violence, or of violence 
directed against any particular class of persons. 

The Ralph Act provides that all persons within this state have the right to be free from violence 
committed against themselves or their property because of their race, color, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, political affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, 1 age, disability, position in a labor 
dispute, or because another person perceives them to have one or more ofthese characteristics. 2 The 
Ralph Act also declares that the prohibited types of discrimination listed in section 51.7 are merely 
illustrative. This means that if someone threatens you or commits a violent act against you because 
you possess, or are perceived to possess, a characteristic which is shared by members of any 
identifiable group, you may have a claim under this law. 

The rights provided for in the Ralph Act can be enforced by an aggrieved individual (i.e., a victim), 
the Attorney General, your local district attorney, or your local city attorney. If you, as an aggrieved 
person, seek to enforce your Ralph Act rights, you can either file a private lawsuit in the appropriate 

court,3 or you can file a complaint with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH}_4 

1Sexual orientation means heterosexuality, homosexuality, or bisexuality. (Civ. Code, § 
51.7, subd. (b).) 

2Civil Code section 51.7, subdivision (a). This section by its terms does not apply to 
statements concerning positions in a labor dispute which are made during otherwise lawful labor 
picketing. 

3Civil Code section 52, subdivision (b). 

4Civil Code section 52, subdivision (f), and Government Code sections 12930 and 12948. 
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are next 

1, 2001, an a 
$25,000 to the person provided by Code section 51.7 (Ralph 
authorized in any action brought by the person denied the right, or by Attorney a 
district attorney or a city attorney. (Civ. Code, §52, subds. (b)(2), (c)(3) .) Code of Civil 
Procedure section 527.6 provides alternative methods for securing injunctive relief in situations 
involving racial, ethnic, religious, and minority violence, or other forms of harassment where 
substantial emotional distress is caused to the victim. Code of Civil Procedure section 527.7 
provides that an injunction can be obtained against a group which is meeting and taking 
substantial action in furtherance of the commission of acts of violence if it can be shown that the 
group will probably engage in those acts in the future. 
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If you a under this Act, or contact the 
Attorney General's Office, your local district or city grant an 
injunction prohibiting intimidating or coercive behavior. Any violation of this order is a 
misdemeanor and may result in fines or imprisonment. 12 If a judgment is awarded your favor in 
a private lawsuit, you may as 13 

Penal Code section 422.6. In addition to civil remedies, the Bane Act establishes criminal 
remedies. Penal Code section 422.6, subdivision (a), makes it unlawful to, by force or threat of 
force, oppress, injure, intimidate, or interfere with any other person the free exercise or enjoyment 
of any right secured by the state or federal government because of other person's race, color, 
religion, ancestry, national origin, disability, gender, or or because it is perceived 
that the victim has one or more of these characteristics. If is through 
speech alone, it must be shown that speech against a specific person 
or group of persons, and that accused had the apparent ability to out the violence. 

Subdivision (b) of this Penal Code Section prohibits the knowing destruction of real or personal 
property of any other person in order to intimidate or interfere with exercise or enjoyment 
of rights provided under federal and state constitutions and laws because of the other person's race, 
color, religion, ancestry, national origin, disability, gender, or sexual orientation. Violations ofthese 
Penal Code sections are punishable by a jail term and/or a fine. 

8Civil Code section 52.1, subdivision (j). 

9This includes the right to be free from racial, ethnic, religious, gender, age, disability, 
sexual orientation, and political violence established by the Ralph Act. 

10Civil Code sections 52.1, subdivision (b), and 52, subdivision (b). 

11 Civil Code section 52.1, subdivisions (a), (c)(3). 

12Civil Code section 52.1, subdivision (i), and Penal Code section 422.9. 

13Civil Code section 52.1, subdivision (h). 
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Penal Code section 422.7 provides that misdemeanors ""1mvc.-,t·tprl 

ancestry, 

Penal Code section 422.95, subdivision 
counties, cities, and school districts to 
violations of civil rights and hate crimes. 

states that it is the Legislature to encourage 
programs to prevent 

If you are the victim of or a witness to any of the activities described by these Penal Code sections, 
contact your local law enforcement agency. If criminal action is taken and you are a victim, you may 
pursue injunctive relief on your own, independent of any action taken by the Attorney General, 
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district or city attorneys. The Bane Act provides that victims may pursue either private lawsuits or 
criminal prosecutions, or both. 14 

Local Human Relations Commissions 

Government Code section 50260 et seq. authorizes and encourages cities and counties to establish 
local human relations commissions to preserve peace among citizens of different races, religions, 
and national origins. If your community has such a commission, you may wish to seek its assistance 
to address hate violence. Below is a list of local human relations commissions. 

California Association of Human Relations Organizations (CAHRO) 
1426 Fillmore Ave., Suite 216 
San Francisco, CA 94115 
(415) 775-2341, (415) 775-2342 fax 

Web Site: http://www.cahro.org/ 

Human Relations Commissions by Counties 

COUNTY 

Alameda County Human 
Relations Commission 

Contra Costa County 
Relations Commission 

Dorado County Round Table 
on Human Relations 

ADDRESS 

310 45th Street 
Oakland, CA 94609 

2020 N. Broadway, #203A 
Walnut Creek, 94596 

330 

14Civil Code section 52.1, subdivision 

TELEPHONE NO. 

(51 0) 596-0405 

(925) 646-6160 

(530) 621 

1 

(714) 567-7470 



Commission 

Avenue 
Colton, CA 92324 

205 S. Willowbrook 
Compton, 90220 

Concord Leisure Services 
Department 1948 Colfax St. 
Concord, CA 94520 

8 

(909) 370-6155 

(3 

(925) 671-3461 



Mesa Human Relations P.O. Box 1200 (714) 754-5667 
Committee Costa Mesa, CA 92628-1200 

Iuman 1 
CIH City 

9770 Culver Boulevard 
90232-0507 

Davis Human Davis Police Department (530) 756-3740, ext. 7446 
Relations Commission 226 F Street 

Davis, CA 95616 

Cerrito Human Relations 10890 San Pablo Avenue (510) 5-4425 
Commission El Cerrito, CA 94530 

Fremont Human Relations 2901 Barrington Terrace (510) 797-1050 
Commission Fremont, CA 94536 

City of Fresno Human 2600 Fresno Street (559) 498-1646 
Relations Commission Room 2162N 

Fresno, CA 93721 

Gardena Human Relations 1700 West 162nd Street (310) 217-9500 
Commission Gardena, CA 9024 7 

Glendale Human Relations 613 E. Broadway, #200 (818) 548-4844 
Coalition Glendale, CA 91206 

Hayward Community 777 B St. (510) 583-4227 
Relations Commission Hayward, CA 94541 

Heartland Human Relations 4 710 4th St., Suite 600 (619) 460-2744 
and Fair Housing Association La Mesa, CA 91941 

Hemet Human Relations P.O. Box 3036 (909) 765-2300, 
Commission Hemet, CA 92546 Fax (909) 765-2337 

Huntington Beach Human 2000 Main Street (714) 536-5577 
Relations Task Force Huntington Beach, CA 92648 

Inglewood Human Affairs 1 Manchester Blvd., (310) 412-5301 
Commission 9th Floor 

Inglewood, CA 90301 

City of Livermore Human 1052 South Livermore Ave. (925) 373-5149 
Services Commission Livermore, CA 94550 

Long Beach Human 2525 Grand A venue (562) 570-4001 
Relations Commission Long Beach, CA 90815 
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Human Relations 200 N. Main St., City Hall (213) 485-4495 
Commission of the City of East, #700 
Los Angeles Los Angeles, CA 90012 

City of Modesto Human City Manager's Office (209) 577-5463 
Relations Commission 801 11th Street 

P.O. Box 84 
Modesto, CA 95353 

Monterey Park Community 320 W. Newmark Avenue (626) 307-1387 
Relations Commission Monterey Park, CA 91754 

City of Oakland Human 1 Frank Ogawa Plaza (510) 238-7298 
Relations Commission Oakland, CA 94612 

Community Relations Human Services Program (805) 385-7947 
Commission of the City of 305 W. Third Street 
Oxnard Oxnard, CA 93030 

Palm Springs Human Rights Human Resources (760) 323-8337 
Commission Department 

P.O. Box 2743 
Palm Springs, CA 92263 

Palo Alto Human Relations Cubberly Community Center (650) 329-2571 
Commission 4000 Middlefield Road 

Palo Alto, CA 94303 

Pasadena Human Relations 100 N. Garfield Ave. ( 626) 7 44-4000 
Commission Pasadena, CA 91109 

Pinole Human Relations 2131 Pear Street (51 0) 724-9000 
Commission Pinole, California 94564 

Pittsburg Community 65 Civic Avenue (925) 252-4959 
Advisory Commission Pittsburg, CA 94565 

City of Pleasanton Human P.O. Box 520 (925) 931-5006 
Services Commission Pleasanton, CA 94566-0802 Fax (925) 931-5488 

City of Pomona Community 505 S. Garvey (909) 620-2438 
Life Commission P.O. Box 660 

Pomona, CA 91769 

Human Relations Council of 913 W. Bonita Ave. (909) 949-0883 
Pomona Valley P.O. Box 1023 

Claremont, CA 91 711 

Rialto Human Relations 150 South Palm (909) 820-2519 
Commission Rialto, CA 92376 

10 
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Miscellaneous State Penal Statutes Which Address Racial, Ethnic, Reli2ious, and Minority 
Violence 

Listed below are some of the other key Penal Code statutes which have been enacted to racial, 
ethnic, religious, and minority violence in California. If you are the victim of or a witness to any 
of the activities described by these statutes, immediately contact your local law enforcement or 
police agency: 

1. Penal Code section 136.2 provides for protective orders. The district attorney or 
city attorney may seek protective orders to protect against further harm to or 
intimidation of hate crimes victims and witnesses by the accused perpetrators. 

Once criminal charges are filed under the Bane Civil Rights Act, or under any other 
criminal statute, hate crime victims have the right to a court order prohibiting any 
additional harassment from, or any communication or contact with the accused 
perpetrator. 

2. Penal Code section 139 creates a felony when someone already convicted of a 
felony communicates a credible threat to use force or violence to witnesses, victims, 
informants or their immediate families. The penalty is one year in county jail or two 
to four years in state prison. 

3. Penal Code section 140 creates a misdemeanor when someone communicates a 
credible threat to witnesses, victims, informants or their immediate families to use 
force or violence. This does not require that the perpetrator already be convicted of 
a related crime. The penalty is one year in county jail or two to four years in state 
pnson. 

4. Penal Code section 185 provides that it is a misdemeanor for any person to wear 
any mask, false whiskers or any personal disguise (whether complete or partial) in 
order to evade or escape discovery, recognition, or identification in the commission 
of any public offense. 

5. Penal Code section 186.21 declares that it is the right of every person, regardless 
of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, gender, age, sexual orientation, or 
handicap, to be protected from fear, intimidation, and physical harm caused by the 
activities of violent groups and individuals. (This is part of the "California Street 
Terrorism Enforcement and Prevention Act," enacted in 1988.) 

6. Penal Code section 190.03 provides that a person who commits first-degree murder 
shall be punished by life imprisonment in state prison without the possibility of 
parole if the defendant intentionally killed the victim because of the victim's actual 
or perceived disability, gender, or sexual orientation. 

12 



7. 

10. Penal Code section 594 
property. 
amount 
disability 

it a crime to 

attaches or 

uu1ua.5 ..,, or destroy another's 
depending primarily on the 

ethnic, religious, gender, 

11. Penal Code section 594.1 makes it unlawful a minor to purchase or any person 
or entity other than a parent to provide a minor with aerosol paint containers in 
excess ounces. court can community service, graffiti removal or 
counseling in the event a violation ofthis section. 

12. Penal Code section 594.3 makes it a crime knowingly to vandalize a church, 
synagogue, or any by a religious educational 
institution, or knowingly to and regularly used 
as a place of worship. This can be a felony or misdemeanor. It is a felony if 
the vandalism is committed because of the race, color, religion or national origin of 
an individual or group and in order to intimidate and deter those persons from 
exercising their religious beliefs. 

13. Penal Code section 640.2 makes it a misdemeanor to stamp, print, place or insert 
any writing in or on any box, package or other container containing a consumer 
product offered for sale. 

14. Penal Code section 1170.75 makes it possible to impose higher sentences for 
felonies committed because of the victim's actual or perceived race, color, religion, 
nationality, country of origin, ancestry, disability, gender, or sexual orientation. 

15. Penal Code section 1170.8 makes it possible to impose higher sentences for a 
robbery, or an assault with a weapon or by any means likely to produce great bodily 
injury, committed against a person while that person is in a church, synagogue, or 
any other place primarily and regularly used as a place of worship, or for arson of a 
place primarily used as a place of worship. 
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16. Penal Code section 1170.85 makes it possible to impose higher sentences for a 
felony ifthe victim is particularly vulnerable, or unable to defend himself or herself, 

17. 

18. 

9. 

to age or significant disability. Penal 667.9 provides 

Penal Code 11410 (terrorism) intent it is 
right of every person, regardless of his or her race, color, creed, religion, gender, or 

to be secure and protected from fear, intimidation and physical harm 
caused by the activities of violent groups and This section also contains 
the Legislature's express finding that the advocacy of unlawful violent acts by groups 
against other persons or groups and/ or great bodily is likely, is not 
constitutionally protected, poses a should be 

to criminal and 

or use 
knowing or having reason to know that 
manner for purposes of civil disorder. 
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22. Penal Code section 12303.2 makes it a felony "recklessly or maliciously" to have 
in one's possession an explosive or destructive device at or near any public place, 
including churches. 

Penal Code section 13519.4 requires the Peace Officer Standards and Training 
Commission to train peace officers in racial and cultural diversity, including gender 
and sexual orientation issues. 

Hate Crimes Reportin~ 

Effective January 1, 2001, Education Code section 233 requires the State Board of Education to 
revise the school curriculum to include human relations education, with the aim of fostering an 
appreciation of the diversity of California's population and discouraging the development of 
discriminatory attitudes and practices. Education Code section 32228 provides that public schools 
should have access to supplemental resources to combat bias on the bases contained in Government 
Code section 12926 ofthe Fair Employment and Housing Act (see Chapter 2, Employment), and to 
prevent and respond to acts ofhate violence. At the same time, Education Code section 32228.1 
requires school districts that receive funds under the School Safety and Violence Prevention Act to 
certify that funds will be used for one or more of a variety of purposes, including, but not limited to, 
preventing and responding to acts ofhate violence and bias related incidents. Effective also January 
1, 2001, Education Code section 44253.3 adds course work on human relations to the curriculum 
for a certificate to provide certain services to limited-English-proficient pupils. As of January 1, 
2001, Penal Code sections 628, 628.1, 628.2, and 628.5 require the Department of Education to 
report on hate-motivated incidents and hate crimes. 

Penal Code section 13023 requires local law enforcement agencies to report to the Department of 
Justice any criminal act where there is reasonable cause to believe the crime was motivated by the 
victim's race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, gender, sexual orientation, or physical or mental 
disability. The Department of Justice is required to issue an annual report on July 1st of every year 
concerning such crimes. 

Penal Code section 13515.25, effective January 1, 2001, requires that the Commission on Peace 
Officer Standards and Training establish a continuing education course relating to law enforcement 
interaction with developmentally disabled and mentally ill persons. 

Penal Code section 13519.6 provides that the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training 
shall develop guidelines and a course of instruction and training in hate crimes for law enforcement 
officers who are employed as peace officers or enrolled a training academy for law enforcement 
officers. Hate crime for purposes ofthis section means any act of intimidation, harassment, physical 
force, or the threat of physical force, directed against person, or family, or their property or 
advocate, motivated either in whole or in part by the hostility to the real or perceived ethnic 
background, national origin, religious belief, gender, age, disability or sexual orientation of that 
person, with the intent to cause fear and intimidation. 

15 



to Hate Crimes Statistics Act of 1990, U.S. C. § 534 et seq., United States 
Department of Justice collects data on hate crimes. 

1994, the Legislature enacted the California Schools 
the State Board ofEducation to 

1. adopt and guidelines to prevent and respond to acts 

2. 

3. use 

a) to promote an appreciation of 

b) 

to 

5. 

12 is now 



California's Victims of Crime Program 

Under Government Code sections 13959-13969.4, some crime victims may be eligible 
assistance 

For information and assistance, contact: 

California Department of Justice 
Attorney General's Office 
Office ofVictims' Services 
1300 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Toll Free Number: (877) 433-9069 (in California) 

17 
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medical conditions), age (40 or older), or sexual orientation21 (heterosexuality, homosexuality, and 
bisexuality).22 The prohibition includes a perception that the person has any ofthose characteristics 

the is associated a person who or is perceived to have, any of those 
are 

Additionally, it is under the to a to four months 
of pregnancy disability leave.24 The Family Rights Act (CFRA) (Gov. Code,§ 12945.2) 
added provisions to the FEHA to provide up to 12 workweeks leave for the reason of the birth of a 
child of the employee, the placement or adoption of a child by the employee, the serious health 
condition of the child, parent, spouse, or the employee.25 

21 Legislation effective January 1, 2000, added sexual orientation as a protected basis 
under the FEHA. (Gov. Code,§§ 12920, 12926, subd. (q).) Previously, discrimination based on 
sexual orientation in employment was part of the now-repealed Labor Code section 1102.1, 
which required employees to file their complaints with the Labor Commissioner within 30 days. 
Under the FEHA, complainants have one year to file such complaints with the DFEH. (Gov. 
Code, § 12965, subd. (b).) The FEHA's protections extend to actual as well as perceived sexual 
orientation, and include persons who are discriminated against because of their association with a 
person who is or is perceived to be of a particular sexual orientation. (Gov. Code, § 12926, 
subd. (m).) Under former Labor Code section 1102.1, money damages were limited to back pay 
only. (Lab. Code,§ 1102.1, repealed by Stats. 1999, ch. 592 (AB 1001), § 12.) 

22 Government Code sections 12920, 12921, 12926, subdivision (j), 12940. 

23 Though interpreted by some that the FEHA had previously provided for a broad range 
of disability coverage, legislation effective January 1, 2001, officially expanded the scope of 
physical and mental impairment to include conditions that are disabling, potentially disabling, or 
perceived as disabling. (Gov. Code, §12926.1, subds. (b) and (c).) In determining whether an 
individual has a disability under the FEHA, mitigating measures, such as medication or assistive 
devices, are not considered. 

24 Government Code section 12945. 

25 CFRA applies to all California public employers of as well as all private 
employers that directly employ 50 or more or part-time persons within a 75-mile radius from 

work where the California employee is employed. (Cal. tit. § 7297.0, 
may take CFRA a 
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The FEHA also protects employees and contract workers from harassment on any of the prohibited 
bases in the work place. 26 Harassment because of sex includes sexual harassment, gender 
harassment, same-sex harassment, and harassment based on pregnancy.27 Sexual harassment may 
be "quid pro quo," involving situations where the victim's submission to advances or conduct 
is made a condition of an employment benefit, or it may create a "hostile work environment," which 
deprives the employee of a discrimination-free work environment.28 

Entities and Persons Covered by the FEHA 

Generally, any employer regularly employing five or more persons is covered by the FEHA. Such 
employers include the state, 29 cities, counties, other government bodies and private employers. All 
governmental employers are covered under the FEHA regardless of size. Also subject to the 
provisions ofthe FEHA are labor organizations, employment agencies, and apprenticeship programs. 
An exception to the five-employee minimum occurs whenever harassment is at issue. Every 
employer employing one or more persons or receiving the services of one or more independent 

7297.0, subd. (a)(l) and (2); 7297.4, subd. (b)(l) and (2), and 7297.11.) An employee may elect 
or an employer may require the employee to substitute accrued vacation leave, other accrued 
time off, any other paid or unpaid time off negotiated with the employer, or sick leave because of 
the employee's serious health condition. (Gov. Code,§ 12945.2, subd. (e); Cal. Code ofRegs., 
tit. 2, § 7297.5.) During the period that an employee takes CFRA leave, the employer shall 
maintain and pay for coverage under a group health plan. (Gov. Code,§ 12945.2, subd. (f)(1); 
Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 7297.5, subd. (c).) 

26 Legislation effective January 1, 2000, covers "a person providing services pursuant to 
a contract" under the FEHA. The criteria for independent contractor include: (1) a person who 
has the right to control the performance of the contract; (2) a person who is customarily engaged 
in an independently established business; and (3) a person who has control over the time and 
place the work is performed, supplies the tools and instruments used, and performs work that 
requires a particular skill not ordinarily used in the course of the employer's work. (Gov. Code, 
§ 12940, subd. (j)(5)(A)-(C).) 

27 Government Code section 12940, subdivision (j)(3)(C); Matthews v. Super. Ct. 
(1995) 34 Cal.App.4th 598; Mogilefsky v. Super. Ct. (1993) 20 Cal.App.4th 1409. 

28Fisher v. San Pedro Peninsula Hospital (1989) 214 Cal.App.3d 590, 607-608, 611. 

29 If you are a state employee, you can also file a discrimination claim with the State 
Personnel Board in addition to any claims you may separately file under the FEHA. (Gov. Code, 
§ 19702.) The State Personnel Board and the FEHC both have jurisdiction over complaints 
concerning state employees. (See State Personnel Board v. Fair Employment and Housing Com. 
( 1985) 39 Cal. 3d 422). 
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contractor(s) 30 is subject to the FEHA's prohibition ofharassmentY Individual co-workers who 
harass another employee in violation of the FEHA are personally liable.32 

Religious associations or religious corporations not organized for private profit may be exempt from 
the provisions of the FEHA under certain circumstancesY Employees ofthe federal government 
are protected from discrimination under federal laws. Additionally, an employee is personally liable 
for any unlawful employment harassment of another employee.34 

Procedures and Remedies 

If you have an employment discrimination problem covered by the FEHA, you should file a 
complaint with the DFEH. Under the FEHA, the DFEH is the administrative agency responsible for 
investigating and prosecuting violations of the FEHA. A complaint can be filed with the DFEH by 
an aggrieved person or the Director of the DFEH. 

To file a complaint of employment discrimination, call the Department's Communication Center or 
log onto the DFEH Web site listed below. If the matter falls within the Department's jurisdiction, 
you, or the person you represent, will be given an appointment for an interview at the nearest DFEH 
office. 

Listed below are the Web site, Communication Center, and District Office addresses and telephone 
numbers of the DFEH which can help you with employment discrimination complaints. 

DFEH Web site: vvww.dfeh.ca.gov 

30 See footnote 26. 

31 Government Code section 12940, subdivision (j). 

32 Government Code section 12940, subdivision (j)(3). 

33 The Commission by precedential decision, in Dept. of Fair Employment and Housing 
v. Haag Memorial Hospital Presbyterian (1985) FEHC Dec. No. 85-10 [1985 WL 62889 
(Cal.F.E.H.C.); 1984-85 CEB 14], has interpreted Government Code section 12926, subdivision 
(d), to exempt the sectarian activities of religious organizations from coverage under the FEHA. 
However, the Commission has interpreted this section not to exempt those activities engaged in 
by such organizations whenever the job at issue is purely secular in nature. Legislation effective 
January 1, 2001, redefined religious exemption to exclude religious associations or corporations 
not organized for private profit. 

34 Legislation effective January 1, 2001, imposes personal liability on an employee who 
engages in unlawful harassment in employment under the FEHA. (Gov. Code,§ 12940, subd. 
(j).) 
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DFEH Communication Center: 

DFEH District Offices: 

Bakersfield 

Fresno 

Los Angeles 

Oakland 

Sacramento 

San Bernardino 

(800) 884-1684 (Within California) 
(916) 227-0551 (Outside California) 
(800) 700-2320 TTY 

(916) 227-2859 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Bakersfield District Office 
1001 Tower Way, #250 
Bakersfield, CA 93309-1586 
Telephone: (805) 395-2729 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Fresno District Office 
1320 E Shaw, #150 
Fresno, CA 93710 
Telephone: (559) 244-4760 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Los Angeles District Office 
611 West Sixth Street Suite 1500 
Los Angeles, CA 9001 7 
Telephone: (213) 439-6700 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Oakland District Office 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 701 
Oakland, CA 94612-2512 
Telephone: (510) 622-2941 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Sacramento District Office 
2000 0 Street, #120 
Sacramento, CA 95814-5212 
Telephone: (916) 445-5523 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
San Bernardino District Office 
1845 S. Business Ctr. Dr., #127 
San Bernardino, CA 92408-3426 
Telephone: (909) 383-4373 
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San Diego 

San Francisco 

San Jose 

Santa Ana 

Ventura 

Department ofFair Employment & Housing 
San Diego District Office 
350 West Ash Street, #950 
San Diego, CA 92101-3901 
Telephone: ( 619) 645-2681 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
San Francisco District Office 
455 Golden Gate Avenue, #7600 
San Francisco, CA 941 02-6073 
Telephone: (415) 703-4177 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
San Jose District Office 
111 North Market St., #180 
San Jose, CA 95113-1102 
Telephone: (408) 277-1271 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Santa Ana District Office 
28 Civic Center Drive, #200 
Santa Ana, CA 92701-4010 
Telephone: (714) 558-4266 

Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
Ventura District Office 
1732 Palma Drive #200 
Ventura, CA 93003 
Telephone: (805) 654-4514 

Unless the discriminatory action taken against you is of a continuing nature, the FEHA requires you 
to file your complaint with the DFEH within one year of the alleged unlawful employment 
discrimination. If you do not discover facts about an unlawful employment practice until after the 
expiration of the one-year filing period, you have an additional 90 days to file a complaint.35 Once 
your complaint has been filed, the DFEH may investigate and attempt to resolve your complaint 
through conciliation and persuasion. If conciliation proves unsuccessful, the DFEH is authorized 
to prosecute an administrative action against the accused employer by issuing a document referred 
to as an "accusation." You do not need your own attorney if the DFEH issues an accusation. 

You will be issued a "right to sue" letter, notifying you that you can file a private lawsuit in court 
if you desire. However, you may request a "right to sue" letter immediately upon filing your 
complaint if you have your own private attorney or choose to represent yourself in a court action. 

35 Government Code section 12960. 
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Once you opt out of the administrative process, all subsequent proceedings will take place through 
private litigation and the DFEH will no longer be involved. 

If you stay in the administrative process, and ifthe DFEH chooses to institute proceedings itselfby 
issuing an accusation, an evidentiary hearing will begin within 90 days unless waived by the parties. 
The merits of your employment discrimination complaint will be litigated at this hearing. If the 
DFEH issues an accusation which asks for either compensatory damages for emotional injury or 
administrative fines, the employer has the right to opt out of the administrative system and have its 
case heard by the courts. The FEHC rules on charges brought by the DFEH, and has broad authority 
to fashion remedies which will effectively carry out and further the purposes of the FEHA. 
Employees who prevail may recover back pay, out-of-pocket losses, and up to $150,000 in combined 
emotional distress damages per respondent. 36 The administrative fines are payable to the State.37 

If the case is litigated in civil court, the employee may recover unlimited monetary damages, 
including back pay, emotional distress damages, punitive damages, any other out-of-pocket losses, 
attorney's fees and costs, including expert witness fees. 38 

Employment Discrimination Remedies with the State Personnel Board 

In addition to the FEHA, other state statutes and constitutional guarantees may also prohibit 
employment discrimination. Article I, section 8, of the California Constitution provides that a 
person may not be disqualified from entering or pursuing a business, profession, vocation, or 
employment because of sex, race, creed, color, or national or ethnic origin. Article I, section 31, of 
the California Constitution provides in relevant part that the State shall not discriminate against, or 
grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or 
national origin in the operation of public employment, public education, or public contracting. 39 An 
Executive Order prohibits any state entity from discriminating against an employee because of the 
employee's sexual orientation.40 Violations of this Executive Order should be reported to the State 

36 Legislation effective January 1, 2000, increased the money damages from $50,000 to 
$150,000 per aggrieved person per respondent. (Gov. Code, § 12970, subd. (a)(3).) 

37 Government Code section 12970, subdivision (d). 

38 Legislation effective January 1, 2000, added expert witness fees which may be 
awarded to a prevailing party. However, no attorney's fees, costs or expert witness fees may be 
awarded to the prevailing party where the action is filed by a public entity or public official, 
acting in an official capacity. (Gov. Code, § 12965, subd. (b).) 

39 California Constitution, Article I, section 31, added by California Civil Rights 
Initiative, Primary Election (Prop. 209) (Nov. 5, 1996). 

40 Executive Order No. B-54-79 (1979). In addition, "[ w ]ithin 30 days after receipt of 
notice of termination of a career executive assignment, the affected employee may appeal to the 
State Personnel Board upon the grounds that the termination was effected for reasons of age, sex, 
sexual preference as prohibited by Governor's Executive Order B-54-79 ( 4/4/79), marital status, 
race, color, national origin, ancestry, disability as defined in Government Code section 
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Personnel Board in writing. The street, Web site and e-mail addresses ofthe State Personnel Board 
are as follows: 

State Personnel Board 
Appeals Division 
801 Capitol Mall, MS #22 
P.O. Box 944201 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2010 
Web site: \V\Vw.spb.ca.gov 
E-mail: Appeals@spb.ca.gov 

If you have any questions or need further information regarding this Executive Order, contact: 

State Personnel Board, Appeals Division: 

General Information Sacramento 
General Information Los Angeles 
Status of Appeals 
Calendaring & Continuances 
Transcript, Tape, Document & Administrative Record 
Secretariat 
FAX 
TDD 

The California Equal Pay Law 

(916) 653-0544/0799 
(213) 897-3370 
(916) 657-2092 
(916) 653-5505 
(916) 657-2489 
(916) 653-0429 
(916) 654-6055 
(916) 654-2360 

The California Equal Pay Law, Labor Code section 1197.5, prohibits discrimination against 
employees on the basis of sex in the payment of wages. Therefore, male and female employees in 
the same classification who perform substantially the same quantity and quality of work are entitled 
to equal pay, unless pay differentials are based on bona fide factors other than sex, such as seniority 
or merit. An employer who denies a person the equal pay guaranteed by this law is liable to the 
affected employee for any difference in wages due the employee, plus interest. The employer is also 
liable for damages in an amount equal to the total amount oflost wages. 

This law is enforced by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (Division) of the State 
Department ofindustrial Relations. If you believe your rights under the Equal Pay Law have been 
violated, you may file a complaint with the Division. To file a complaint, log onto the Division's 
Web site at \VWw.dir.ca.gov/dlse or contact the following regional telephone numbers and local 
offices: 

19231 ( a)(l ), religion, or religious opinions and affiliations, political affiliation, or political 
opinions. After hearing the appeal, the board may affirm the action of the appointing power, or 
restore the affected employee to the career executive assignment." (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 
548.13.) 
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15) 557-7878 
142-3660 

Santa Rosa and Eureka: (707) 445-9067 
Santa 50 "D" Street, 360, Santa 

619 Second Street, Room 1 

12 

CA 95404 
95501 

Sacramento, Redding, Marysville: (916) 323-4920 
Sacramento, 2424 Arden Way, Suite 360, Sacramento, 95825 
Redding, 2115 Akard A venue, Room 17, Redding, 96001 
Marysville, 1204 Street, Marysville, CA 95901 

1 

Los Angeles, Santa Ana, Long Beach, Van Nuys: (213) 620-6330 
320 West 4th Street Los Angeles, CA 90013 
28 Civic Center Plaza, Room 625, Santa Ana, CA 92701 
300 Oceangate, Third Floor, Long Beach, CA 90802 
6150 Van Nuys Blvd., Room 100, Van Nuys, CA 91401 

San Diego: (619) 467-3002 
8765 Aero Drive, Suite 125, San Diego, CA 92123 

Please note the public information numbers of the Division for the following areas: 

Fresno: (209) 248-8400 
770 East Shaw Ave, Suite 315 Fresno, CA 93710 

Stockton: (209) 948-7770 
31 East Channel Street, Room 317 Stockton, CA 95202 

Bakersfield: (805) 395-2710 
5555 California Ave., Suite 200 Bakersfield, CA 93309 

San Bernardino: (909) 383-4334 
464 West Fourth Street, Room 348, San Bernardino, CA 92401 

Santa Barbara: (805) 568-1222 
411 East Canon Perdido Street, Room 3, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Upon the filing of the complaint, the Division is empowered to investigate your allegations to 
determine their validity. During the course of its investigation, the Division will keep your name 
confidential unless it becomes necessary to reveal your name to verify your allegations. If the 
Division verifies your claims, it is then authorized to initiate all necessary proceedings, including 
a civil lawsuit, to collect any wages and damages due you. 
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17. Government Code section 31006 prohibits any county from failing to hire any 
person, who is otherwise qualified, solely on account of age. 

18. Government Code 45050 prohibits city from establishing or 
age for any civil service examination. 

19. Government Code section 45051 prohibits any city from failing to hire a person, 
who is otherwise qualified, solely on account of age. 

20. Labor Code sections 230 and 230.1 effective January 1, 2001, enacted the Victims 
of Domestic Violence Employment Leave Act, which prohibits employers with 25 
or more employees from discharging or in any manner discriminating or retaliating 
against an employee who is a victim of domestic violence and who takes time off 
from work to seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, to 
obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center, to 
obtain psychological counseling, or to participate in safety planning and take other 
actions to increase safety from future domestic violence. 

21. Labor Code sections 1101 and 1102 prohibit employers from adopting or enforcing 
any rule, regulation, or policy preventing employers from participating in politics or 
controlling the political activities or affiliations of employees. 

22. Labor Code section 1153 states that it shall be an unfair labor practice for an 
agricultural employer to discriminate in regards to the hiring or tenure of 
employment, or to discriminate against an employee in any condition of employment, 
for purposes of encouraging or discouraging membership in any labor organization. 
This section furthermore states that it is an unlawful labor practice to retaliate against 
an employee because he or she has filed a charge or given testimony regarding an 
unlawful labor practice. 

23. Labor Code section 1735 prohibits discrimination against potential employees on 
public works projects because of their race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or 
sex. 

24. Labor Code section 1777.6 prohibits discrimination in the employment of 
apprentices on any state public works projects because oftheir race, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or age (provided the person is at least 16 years 
of age and has entered an apprentice agreement with an employer or program 
sponsor). 

25. Labor Code section 3095 makes it a misdemeanor for anyone willfully to 
discriminate in any apprenticeship program on the basis or race, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, or sex. 
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26. Welfare and Institutions Code section 14087.28 prohibits hospitals which 
participate in the Medi-Cal program from determining medical staff membership or 
~·"·"·~~, privileges on the basis of sex, race, creed, national or any other 
criteria lacking professional justification. 

Unemployment Insurance Compensation 

Under Califomia law, you have a right to unemployment insurance benefits if you quit your job as 
a result of discriminatory treatment by your employer. Unemployment Insurance Code section 
1256.2 states that you have good cause to quit your job if you are discriminated against on the basis 
of your race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, or physical handicap. Moreover, 
under Unemployment Insurance Code section 1256.7, you also have good cause to quit your job if 
you are sexually harassed by your employer.41 Accordingly, if you are discriminated against on any 

the bases set forth in section 1256.2 or are sexually harassed, you may not be disqualified from 
receiving unemployment insurance benefits if you quit your job. Of course, you must meet all other 
eligibility requirements under the Unemployment Insurance Code in order to receive benefits. For 
more information regarding your rights to unemployment insurance compensation, contact your local 
Employment Development Department (EDD) office for assistance. 

It is very important to note that if you do quit your job because you have been discriminated against 
by employer and a claim for unemployment insurance benefits, employer may appeal 

EDD determination you should receive benefits. If this occurs, you may wish to seek the 
advice of an attomey. Under Califomia law, if you should subsequently lose your unemployment 

employer may be able to use that decision any subsequent 

Federal Laws 

Title VII of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 

Civil Rights Act of 1 
also prohibits discrimination in employment. 

should note are to 

other 
forum 
appeal 
office 

(42 U.S.C. § 

to 



covers state and local governments, private employers with fifteen or more employees, labor 
organizations, employment services and apprenticeship programs. 

must with the EEOC within 300 days of the alleged or 
30 days oftermination of any state proceeding, whichever period expires first. Title VII requires you 
to file your complaint with the DFEH before allowing you to lodge your Title VII complaint 
However, the EEOC and DFEH have a joint filing agreement so a complaint filed with one agency 
is automatically filed with the other as well. 

Like the FEHA, Title VII provides for administrative investigations and a private right of action. 
However, unlike awards given by the Fair Employment and Housing Commission under the FEHA, 
administrative findings of the EEOC are not enforceable in court. The EEOC may file a court action 
to enforce your rights under Title VII, or the EEOC will issue you a "right to sue" letter authorizing 
you to file your own action in court. If you file a private court action, you may recover back pay and 
other make-whole relief, injunctive relief, punitive damages, and reasonable attorney fees. 

If you have been discriminated against in the area of employment, and want to bring a federal claim 
based upon Title VII, contact the nearest office ofthe EEOC. Listed below are the addresses and 
telephone numbers of the EEOC offices located throughout California: 

EEOC Web site: http:/ /www.eeoc.gov/ 

Field Offices 

To be automatically connected with the nearest EEOC field office, call: 
Phone: 1-800-669-4000 
TDD: 1-800-669-6820 

Fresno Local Office 

1265 West Shaw Avenue, Suite 103 
Fresno, CA 93 711 
Phone: 559-487-5793 
TDD: 559-487-5837 

Los Angeles District Office 

255 E. Temple, 4th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
Phone:213-894-1000 
TDD: 213-894-1121 
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Oakland Local Office 

1301 Clay Street, Suite 1170-N 
Oakland, CA 94612-5217 
Phone: 510-637-3230 
TDD: 510-637-3234 

San Diego Area Office 

401 B Street, Suite 1550 
San Diego, CA 92101 
Phone:619-557-7235 
TDD: 619-557-7232 

San Francisco District Office 

901 Market Street, Suite 500 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Phone: 415-356-5100 
TDD: 415-356-5098 

San Jose Local Office 

96 North 3rd Street, Suite 200 
San Jose, CA 95112 
Phone: 408-291-7352 
TDD: 408-291-7374 

42 u.s.c. § 1981 

In addition to Title VII, 42 U.S.C. § 1981 (section 1981 ), provides a federal remedy for some 
unlawful employment discrimination. Read literally, section 1981 simply provides that all persons 
have equal rights to make and enforce contracts. However, as interpreted by the United States 
Supreme Court, section 1981 includes the right to contract for employment free from racial 
discrimination.42 Therefore, section 1981 makes it unlawful for an employer to use a person's race 
as the basis for either interfering with the making of an employment contract or for refusing to enter 
such a contract. 

A recent court decision has limited the reach of section 1981 to discriminatory refusal to enter into 
a contract, holding that section 1981 does not extend to discriminatory conduct after an employee 
is hired.43 However, in certain circumstances you might still wish to pursue a section 1981 action, 
such as to receive compensatory and punitive damages or if your complaint is untimely under Title 

42 Runyon v. McCrary (1976) 427 U.S. 160. 

43 Patterson v. McLean Credit Union (1989) 491 U.S. 164. 
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CHAPTER HI 

HOUSING 

STATE LAWS 

The Fair Employment and Housing Act and The Unruh Civil Rights Act 

The California Legislature has declared that discrimination in housing is against the public policy 
of the State of California. Moreover, the Legislature has recognized that your right to seek, obtain, 
and hold housing without discrimination on any of the bases specified in the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act or on any other basis prohibited by the Unruh Civil Rights Act is a civil right. 

The Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA), Government Code section 12900 et seq., 
specifically prohibits housing discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, familial status, disability, or source ofincome.49 

The Unruh Civil Rights Act, Civil Code section 51 (hereafter the Unruh Act or the Act) prohibits 
discrimination in "all business establishments of every kind whatsoever."50 This provision has been 
interpreted to include businesses and persons engaged in the sale or rental of housing 
accommodations. 51 

While the Act specifically prohibits only discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, ancestry, or disability, its language, unlike the FEHA's, has been judicially and 
statutorily construed to apply to arbitrary discrimination based on personal traits, beliefs, or 
characteristics similar to those specifically listed. 52 The Act, for example, has been held to prohibit 
discrimination against families with children and against persons based upon their sexual orientation 
or their age. 53 Accordingly, the Act does not apply only to those bases which are specifically listed, 
but may also apply to other, unlisted but similar bases, as well. 

49 Government Code section 12955. 

50 Although violations of the Unruh Act are also violations ofthe FEHA (see Civil Code, 
§52, subd. (f), and Gov. Code,§§ 12948, 12955, subd. (d)), for ease of reference the two acts 
will be described separately. 

51 Burks v. Poppy Construction Co. (1962) 57 Cal.2d 463. 

52Harris v. Capital Growth Investors XIV (1991) 52 Cal.3d 1142. 

53See Civil Code section 51.2, subdivision (a), (age); Marina Point, Ltd. v. Wolfson 
(1982) 30 Ca1.3d 721 (families with children); Rolon v. Rulwitzky (1984) 153 Cal.App. 3d 289 
(sexual orientation). It should be noted that it is presently unclear whether the Unruh Act 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of marital status. (See Smith v. Fair Employment & 
Housing Com. (1996) 12 Cal.4th 1143, 1160.) 
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addition, the Unruh Act, like the FEHA, prohibits discrimination against persons who are 
perceived to be a member of a protected class or who associate with a member of, or with a person 
perceived to be a member of, a protected class.54 The FEHA also prohibits harassment of persons 

for or housing accommodations on any of the bases specified in the Act.55 

The and the Unruh Civil Rights Act can be enforced against any owner, lessor, sublessor, 
assignor, managing agent, real estate broker, salesperson, or any person having any legal or equitable 
right of ownership or possession or the right to rent a housing accommodation. 56 

The provisions of the FEHA are generally applicable to any real property that is occupied or 
intended to be occupied as a horne, residence, or sleeping place by one or more families. 57 Only two 
categories ofhousing are expressly exempted. First, the FEHA does not apply to renting a portion 
of a single-family, owner-occupied house to one person. 58 Second, religious organizations which 
own or operate housing accommodations for non-commercial purposes, either directly or through 
a related non-profit institution or organization, may give a preference to persons ofthe same religion 
in the sale, rental, or occupancy of such accommodations. 59 

The Unruh Act covers any form ofhousing which can be termed a "business establishment." This 
term has been liberally construed by the courts to include virtually every type of housing 
accommodation. For example, the Act has been held to apply to operators of motels and hotels; real 
estate brokers and agents and others engaged in the sale or rental of real property; owners of 
triplexes, duplexes, non-owner occupied single-family dwellings, and publicly-assisted housing 
projects; operators of mobile home parks; and condominium homeowners' associations. 

The following is a partial listing ofhousing practices prohibited by the FEHA and the Unruh Act.60 

It is unlawful: 

• to make any inquiry concerning the race, color, religion, sex, national ongm, 
ancestry, or other protected characteristic ofthe person seeking to rent, purchase, or 
lease any housing accommodation; 

54Govemrnent Code section 12955, subdivision (rn); Civil Code section 51; In re Cox 
(1970) 3 Ca1.3d 205. 

55Governrnent Code section 12955, subdivision (a). 

56Government Code section 12927, subdivision (e). 

57Governrnent Code section 12927, subdivision (d). 

58Governrnent Code section 12927, subdivision (c)(2)(A). 

59Governrnent Code section 12955.4. 

60See, for example, Government Code sections 12955, 12927 subd. (c)(l). 
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• to place an advertisement regarding the rental or sale of any housing accommodation 
which indicates any preference or limitation based upon race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, ancestry, or any other characteristic protected by FEHA or the 
Unruh Act; 

to discriminate for a loan to purchase or construct housing 

• 

on a prohibited basis; 

to harass, evict, or otherwise discriminate against any person who 
complaint with the DFEH or who has testified or assisted in any 
pursuant to the FEHA; 

filed a 
brought 

• to aid, abet, incite, compel, or coerce 
practices; 

doing of any of the foregoing illegal 

• to refuse to sell, rent, or lease a housing accommodation on any prohibited basis; 

• to refuse to negotiate for 
prohibited basis; 

sale, rental, or lease of a housing accommodation on any 

• to misrepresent the availability of a housing accommodation because the prospective 
buyer or lessee is a member of a class protected by either the FEHA or Unruh Act; 

• to provide inferior 
with or 

to cancel or a or 
class protected by either the 

• to 

• to harass someone in 

Procedures to Follow and Remedies Available 

You can enforce your rights under the FEHA or Unruh Act 
or by filing a lawsuit. By a complaint 
administrative process essentially same way you would 

by filing a 
DFEH, 

department employment discrimination. Whether your housing 
or the Unruh Act, must file your complaint with DFEH 
discriminatory act.62 you your vVJHIJHHJLH l~YirY\Arl 

IS a 

preceding chapter on employment discrimination. 
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alleged 



Whether your claim is based upon the Unruh Act or the FEHA, the DFEH will conduct an 
investigation to detern1ine its validity and attempt to settle the matter. If it is unable to reach a 
settlement, and there is reasonable cause to believe that a violation has occurred or is about to occur, 

an or entity your rights to answer 
at an administrative you or the party charged so elect, at a civil 

trial. 63 

In to your own FEHA or Unruh Act lawsuit, however, you do not have to file a 
complaint with the DFEH at all. 64 You should note that if you do file a private action, the DFEH will 
not act on any complaint you may have filed. 

Remedies available from the · Employment and Housing Commission (FEHC) in administrative 
actions for housing discrimination include: orders requiring the sale or rental of the housing 
accommodation if it is still available; payment of actual damages; and payment of a civil penalty of 
up to $50,000.65 Remedies available private actions brought to enforce your rights depend upon 
whether your claim is brought pursuant to the Unruh Act or the FEHA. Remedies available in 
private Unruh Act suits include actual damages, a penalty of up to three times the amount of actual 
damages, injunctive relief, and attorney's fees. 66 Remedies available in private FEHA actions, or in 
a civil trial elected in lieu of an administrative hearing before the FEHC, include actual, 
compensatory, and punitive damages, injunctive relief, and attorney's fees if you are represented by 
private counsel rather than by the DFEH.67 

Finally, it should be noted that under certain circumstances, the Attorney General, or your local 
district or city attorney, may bring actions to correct housing violations under the FEHA and/or the 
Unruh Civil Rights Act. While FEHA and Unruh Act housing violations ordinarily should be 
reported to the DFEH, ifthere is reasonable cause to believe that a person or group is engaged in a 
pattern or practice of violating the housing rights protected by the Unruh Act, you should report such 
activity to the Attorney General's Public Inquiry Unit or to your local district or city attorney. You 
can write the Public Inquiry Unit at the number and address provided at the beginning of this 
pamphlet. 

63Government Code sections 12981, subdivision (a), 12989, subdivision (a). 

64Government Code section 12989.1. 

65Government Code section 12987. The Supreme Court is reviewing the Commission's 
ability to award emotional distress damages in housing discrimination cases. (See Konig v. Fair 
Employment and Housing Commission 79 Cal.App.4th 10 (review granted on specified issues on 
June 28, 2000, S087843, opinion ordered partially published pending review). 

66Civil Code section 52. 

67Government Code section 12989.2. 
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credit housing 
limit the sale or rental of and housing 

The authority and responsibility for provisions of the lies with the United 
States Secretary ofHousing and Urban Development. For more information concerning your rights 
and remedies under the FFHA, you should contact your local office of the Department ofHousing 
and Urban Development (HUD). You should note that if you believe that you have a claim under 
the FFHA, you must file a written complaint within one year after the alleged discriminatory act 
occurred or terminated, if you would like HUD's assistance in resolving the claim. HUD will 
investigate your complaint, attempt to resolve it by conciliation, and, if necessary, proceed to have 
the matter heard either in court or in an administrative hearing. After an administrative hearing, 
actual damages and injunctive relief may be awarded as well as a civil penalty ofup to $50,000. 72 

Alternatively, you may also file an action directly in court, without first filing with HUD. Any such 
court action must be filed within two years after the alleged discriminatory act. If you prevail, you 
may recover actual and punitive damages, injunctive relief, and reasonable attorney's fees. 73 

In addition to the FFHA, 42 U.S.C. § 1982 also prohibits discrimination in the area of housing. 
Section 1982 states: "All citizens ofthe United States shall have the same right, in every state and 
territory, as is enjoyed by white citizens thereof to inherit, purchase, lease, sell, hold, and convey real 
and personal property." Thus, section 1982 bars all racial discrimination, private as well as public, 
in the sale or rental ofproperty.74 

Although section 1982 and the FFHA share the same goals, the two federal remedies do differ in a 
few significant respects. First, section 1982 only prohibits discrimination based upon color or race, 
whereas the FFHA applies more broadly. Second, section 1982 is enforceable only through private 
action, while the FFHA establishes an administrative scheme. Lastly, while section 1982 is 
generally limited to discrimination in the sale or rental of property, the FFHA extends to other 
related areas, such as discrimination in the provision of brokerage services. A section 1982 action, 

6942 U.S.C. § 3603. 

7042 U.S.C. § 3607. 

71 42 U.S.C. § 3605. 

7242 U.S.C. §§ 3610, 3612. 

7342 U.S.C. § 3613. 

74Jones v. Alfred H. Mayer Co. (1968) 392 U.S. 409. 



like a 42 U.S.C. § 1981 claim, can be brought in either state or federal court, and you do not need 
to file an FFHA claim before you file a section 1982 court action. 75 

To file a housing discrimination with HUD, contact the following: 

HUD Web site: http://www.hud.gov/ 

HUD Toll-Free Number: 1-800-669-9777 

HUD California Office: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Phillip Burton Federal Building 

75 !d. 

and U.S. Courthouse 
450 Golden Gate A venue 
San Francisco, California 94102-3448 
( 415) 436-8400 
1-800-347-3739 
TTY (415) 436-6594 
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CHAPTER IV 

PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS, BUSINESSES AND SERVICES 

The Unruh Civil Rights Act 

The Unruh Civil Rights Acf6
, or Unruh Act, as discussed in the housing chapter of this publication, 

applies to all business establishments of every kind whatsoever which provide services, goods, or 
accommodations to the public. Businesses subject to the Unruh Act include bookstores, 
gymnasiums, shopping centers, mobile horne parks, bars and restaurants, schools, medical and dental 
offices, hotels and motels, and condominium homeowners associations.77 The Unruh Act prohibits 
all types of arbitrary discrimination, and not just discrimination based on sex, race, color, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, age, disability or medical condition. 78 The Unruh Act also prohibits 
discrimination based on personal characteristics, geographical origin, physical attributes, and 
individual beliefs. For example, the arbitrary exclusion of individuals from a restaurant based on 
their sexual orientation is prohibited.79 

You can pursue an Unruh Act claim by filing a verified complaint with the Department of Fair 
Employment and Housing (DFEH) or a private lawsuit. If a business establishment is engaging in 
a pattern or practice of discrimination, you can refer the matter to the Attorney General's Office or 
to your local district or city attorney. Please refer to the housing chapter of this publication for the 
procedures to follow and remedies available in redressing your claim for a public accommodation's 
violation ofthe Unruh Act. 

Protection Under California's Disabled Access Laws 

In addition to the protections against arbitrary discrimination afforded to disabled individuals 
pursuant to the Unruh Civil Rights Act, the Legislature has enacted specific laws that protect the 
right of physically and mentally disabled individuals to obtain full and equal access to public 
accommodations, public transportation, telephone facilities, lodging, and entertainment. For a 
detailed analysis of the legal rights of disabled individuals, please refer to the Office ofthe Attorney 
General's publication, Legal Rights of Persons With Disabilities, Second Edition (1997). 

Listed below are some of the key statutory provisions which prohibit discrimination by public 
accommodations against disabled individuals: 

76Civil Code sections 51 to 53, inclusive. 

77 For a more detailed analysis, please see Chapter 3, Housing. 

78 The Unruh Civil Rights Act does not apply to an employer's discrimination against 
an employee. (Alcorn v. Anbro Engineering, Inc. (1970) 2 Cal.3d 493.) However, see 
Chapter 2, Employment, for laws applicable in the employment context. 

79 Rolon v. Kulwitzky (1984) 153 Cal.App.3d 289. 
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1. Civil Code section 54 articulates California's public policy that disabled individuals have 
the same right as the general public to the full and free use of the streets, highways, 
sidewalks, walkways, and public buildings, facilities, and places. This section defines a 
disability as a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the 
major activities of the individual, a record of such impairment, or being regarded as having 
such an impairment. A violation of the right of a disabled individual under the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)80 also constitutes a violation of this section. Aggrieved 
persons may recover up to three times the actual damages or a minimum of $1,000, 
injunctive relief, and reasonable attorney's fees. 

You can pursue a claim under this section by filing a complaint with the DFEH or a private 
lawsuit. If you believe you have an ADA complaint, call (800) 514-0301 or (800) 514-0383 
(TDD) to obtain answers to general and technical questions about the ADA and to order 
technical assistance materials. 81 

2. Civil Code section 54.1 provides specific protections to disabled individuals in attaining full 
and equal access to all public accommodations and their advantages, facilities, and 
privileges; to places of public accommodation, amusement, or resort; and to other places to 
which the general pub lie is invited, including public modes o ftransportation, private schools, 
hotels, hospitals, and public buildings. Aggrieved persons may recover up to three times 
the actual damages or a minimum of$1,000, injunctive relief, and reasonable attorney's 
fees. 

You can pursue claim under this Section by filing a complaint with the DFEH, or a private 
lawsuit. The Attorney General, the Department of Rehabilitation, or your district or city 
attorney may bring an action to enjoin any violation of Civil Code section 54.1. 

3. Government Code section 4450 et seq. requires buildings and facilities remodeled after 
1968 or built with state, county, or municipal funds to be accessible to the disabled and 
comply with accessibility standards adopted by the State Architect.82 Complaints that 
facilities that are being maintained in violation of state disabled access laws should be filed 
with your local building department. Government Code section 4452, as interpreted by the 

80See Title 42 of the United States Code, section 12101 et. seq. The ADA prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability in employment, programs and services provided to the 
public by state and local governments, and goods and services provided by private companies 
and commercial facilities. It contains requirements for new construction, for alterations or 
renovations to buildings and facilities, and for improving full and equal access to the existing 
facilities of private companies providing goods or services to the public. In addition, the ADA 
requires effective communication with disabled individuals and modifications of discriminatory 
policies and practices. 

81 You may also visit the United States Department of Justice's ADA Web site at 
<http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/ada/adahoml.htm> (as of June 4, 2001). 

82 See Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. 
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Attorney General,83 requires the local building department to reach a final resolution of a 
complaint within 90 days of its filing. If violations are found, the building department must 
state how it will require the full compliance of the public accommodation or facility with 
California disabled access laws and regulations. Upon the request of the complainant, the 
Attorney General will review the local agency's final resolution of a complaint for abuse of 
discretion. If abuse of discretion is found, the Attorney General's Office will take action 
against the local building department, such as requesting it to reconsider its final resolution 
or by taking legal action against the local agency. The Attorney General or your district or 
city attorney may bring an action to enjoin any violation of Government Code section 4450 
et seq. 

4. Government Code section 4500 et seq. requires that, in awarding contracts for operations, 
equipment, or structures, every state agency, board, and department, local governmental 
subdivision, district, public, and quasi-public corporation, local public agency and service 
corporation, and city, county, and municipal corporation, whether incorporated, chartered or 
not, must require that all fixed-route transit equipment and public transit structures be built 
so that disabled individuals have ready access to, from, and in such equipment and structures. 
Further, all public transit facilities and operations must meet the standards of the ADA84 and 
its regulations. 85 Where California law sets a higher standard than the ADA for public transit 
facilities and operations, then those higher standards must be met. 

5. Health and Safety Code section 19955 et seq. requires that places of public accommodation 
remodeled after July 1, 1970, or constructed with private funds must comply with 
accessibility standards adopted by the State Architect. See Government Code section 4450 
et seq. for remedies. 

Protection Under California's Insurance Laws 

Insurance companies are businesses and public accommodations subject to the provisions of the 
Unruh Civil Rights Act. 86 Thus, prospective and actual insureds subjected to arbitrary discrimination 
by insurance companies can pursue Unruh Act claims as described above. In addition, the 
Legislature has enacted specific laws prohibiting discriminatory practices which may occur in the 
insurance business. Listed below are some of the key statutory provisions which prohibit 
discrimination in the area of insurance. The Insurance Commissioner has the primary responsibility 
for enforcing these laws. 

1. Insurance Code section 679.71 makes it unlawful for an insurer to fail or refuse to accept 
an insurance application; to refuse to issue an insurance policy; to cancel insurance on 

83 93 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 203 (July 14, 1993). 

84 See Title 42 ofthe United States Code, section 12101 et seq. 

85 See Title 28 ofthe Code of Federal Regulations, part 35. 

86 Insurance Code section 1861.03, subdivision (a). 
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conditions less favorable than those applied to all individuals in comparable cases; or to 
charge a higher rate or premium on the basis of a prospective or actual insured's marital 
status, sex, race, color, national origin, religion, or ancestry. This section does not apply to 
automobile or workers' compensation insurance policies 

2. Insurance Code sections 679.72, 10141, and 10142 make it unlawful for an insurance 
policy application, investigation, or report used to determine insurance eligibility to carry 
or require the identification of an applicant's race, color, religion, national origin, or 
ancestry. These sections do not apply to automobile or workers' compensation insurance 
policies. 

3. Insurance Code section 790.10 authorizes the Insurance Commissioner to issue regulations 
interpreting the Insurance Code. Pursuant to this authorization, the Commissioner issued a 
regulation, section 2560.3 ofTitle 10 of the California Code ofRegulations, which prohibits 
any person or entity engaged in the insurance business in California from refusing to issue; 
canceling; declining to renew; or restricting, modifying, or excluding the amount ofbenefits 
payable or the terms, conditions, or type of coverage on 
any insurance contract because ofthe sex, marital status, or sexual orientation ofthe insured 
or prospective insured. 

4. Insurance Code section 10123.2 requires that a self-insured employee welfare benefit plan 
providing coverage for hospital, medical, or surgical expenses must offer coverage to 
physically disabled individuals for expenses incurred under the same terms and conditions 
normally provided by the insurer to a non-physically disabled insured. Every self-insured 
welfare benefit plan shall communicate the availability of such coverage to all members and 
prospective members. However, the self-insured welfare benefit plan shall not be required 
to cover hospital, medical, or surgical expenses arising as a direct result of a physically 
disabled person's disability. 

5. Insurance Code sections 10123.3 and 10143 make it unlawful for any life or disability 
insurer or self-insured employee welfare benefit plan providing hospital, medical, or surgical 
coverage to refuse to issue, sell, or renew insurance to any person solely because the person 
carries a gene which may be associated with a disability in that person's offspring, but which 
causes no adverse effects on the carrier. 

6. Insurance Code section 10140 makes it unlawful for a life or disability insurer to fail or 
refuse to accept an insurance application from, to refuse to issue a policy to, or to charge a 
higher rate or premium to an individual or to cancel insurance on conditions less favorable 
than those applied to all individuals in comparable cases on the basis ofthe individual's race, 
color, religion, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, or genetic characteristic. 

7. Insurance Code section 10144 makes it unlawful for an insurer providing, issuing, or 
administering life, annuity, or disability insurance benefits to charge a different rate for the 
same coverage offered to others or to refuse to insure, refuse to continue to insure, or limit 
the coverage available to an individual solely because of his or her physical or mental 
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impairment, unless the refusal, limitation, or rate differential is based upon sound actuarial 
principles or related to actual and reasonably anticipated experience. 

8. Insurance Code section 10144.1 requires disability insurers that provide hospital, medical, 
or surgical coverage which deny coverage to a terminally ill claimant for an experimental 
medical procedure or plan oftreatment to provide written notification detailing the specific 
medical and scientific reasons for the denial, specific references to the policy provisions 
upon which the denial is based, a description of alternative medical procedures covered by 
the policy, and a description of the process available to appeal the denial of coverage or to 
review the information provided to the insured. The appeal of the insurer's denial of 
coverage or the review of the insured's information must occur within 30 days following the 
receipt of the insured's request for review. 

9. Insurance Code sections 10144.2 and 10144.3 prohibit life and disability insurers covering 
hospital, medical, or surgical expenses to charge a different rate for the same coverage 
offered to others or to refuse to insure, refuse to continue to insure, or limit the coverage 
available to an individual on the basis that she or he is, has been, or may be a victim of 
domestic violence. Further, disability insurers are prohibited from considering as a medical 
condition and a basis for underwriting coverage that an individual is, has been, or may be the 
subject of domestic violence. 

10. Insurance Code section 10145 makes it unlawful for insurers providing life, annuity, or 
disability benefits to charge a different rate for the same coverage offered to others or to 
refuse to insure, to refuse to continue to insure, or to limit the coverage available to an 
individual solely because of his or her blindness or partial blindness. 

11. Insurance Code sections 11628 and 11628.5 make it unlawful for motor vehicle liability 
insurers to refuse to insure, refuse to continue to insure, limit the coverage available to, or 
charge a different rate for the same coverage offered to others on the basis of an individual's 
race, language, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, or geographical area of 
residence. 

12. Insurance Code section 11628.7 prohibits motor vehicle liability insurers from 
discriminating against blind motor vehicles owners in the issuance of insurance and from 
charging a higher rate of insurance based upon the frequent change of drivers of the insured 
vehicle. 

13. Insurance Code section 12095 prohibits insurers issuing surety insurance from refusing to 
accept an application for a contractor's performance bond, refusing to issue such a bond to 
an applicant, canceling such a bond, or charging a different rate for the same coverage 
because of the applicant's race, color, gender, religion, national origin, ancestry, or 
geographical area of residence. 

14. Insurance Code sections 799.03, 799.05, 799.07, 799.10, and 799.20 prohibit life and 
disability insurers from testing applicants for HIV or the presence of HIV antibodies as a 
condition of insurance, unless the insurer obtains the applicant's written informed consent. 
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life and disability insurers are prohibited from considering the applicant's marital 
status or known or suspected homosexuality or bisexuality as a basis for determining whether 

to an test. 
appropriate equitable 

If an insurance or a or life insurance plan discriminates against you, you may 
a complaint with the California Department of Insurance: 

California Department of Insurance 
Consumer Communications Bureau 
300 South Spring Street, South Tower 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 

Telephones: (800) 927 HELP (4357) (Inside California) 
(213) 897- 8921 (Outside California & Los Angeles) 

TDD: (800) 482 - 4833 
Web Site: W\vw.msurance.ca.gov 

are 

If a health maintenance organization discriminates against you, you may file a complaint with the 
following: 

State Department of Health Services, Medical Managed Care Division 
Office of the Ombudsman 
714 P Street, Room 650, P.O. Box 942732 
Sacramento, CA 94234-7320 

Telephone: 
Web Site: 

(916) 654-8076 
vvww.dhs.mmcd.ca, gov 

Protection Against Discrimination by Persons Licensed to Render Services 

Business and Professions Code section 125.6 provides that any person who holds a license pursuant 
to the Business and Professions Code87 is subject to disciplinary action person discriminates 

"''"''"u", surgeons, chiropractors, 
podiatrists, 
opticians, nurses, 

veterinarians, 
'"'"'''v" agencies, 





addition to the Unruh Act, the Housing Financial Discrimination Act, also known as the Holden 
Act (HFDA),89 prohibits financial institutions from discriminating in the provision or availability 

accommodations on the basis, whole or in part, of the 
national origin, or ancestry. financial 

institutions are prohibited the racial, ethnic, religious, or national origin 
composition of a neighborhood or geographic area surrounding a particular housing accommodation 
to determine whether to extend or deny financial assistance, or to prescribe the terms and conditions 
of such financial assistance.90 

Complaint of a financial institution's Holden Act violations may be filed with the California 
Secretary of Business, Transportation and Housing, who must investigate Holden Act complaints 
and take remedial action as required by law. You may file complaints or inquiries regarding the 
Holden Act at the offices listed below. 

State-Licensed Savings and Loan Associations, State Licensed Savings Banks, State-Chartered 
Banks, and State Credit Unions 

California Department of Financial Institutions 

111 Pine Street, Suite 1100, San Francisco, CA 94111-5613 
300 S. Spring Street, Suite 15513, Los Angeles, CA 90013-1204 
801 K Street,.Suite 2124, Sacramento, CA 95814 
9609 Naples Street, Suite 100, San Diego, CA 92121 

Telephone: (800) 622-0620 

Web Site: www.dfi.ca.gov 

Mortgage Brokers 

California Department of Real Estate 
2201 Broadway, P. 0. Box 187000 
Sacramento, CA 95818 
Telephone: (916) 227-0864 

Web Site: www.dre.ca.gov 

89 See Health and Safety Code section 35800 et seq. 

90 The Holden Act's coverage is further defined by administrative regulations known as 
California's Fair Lending Regulations. For further information regarding the Holden Act's 
coverage, consult section 7107 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations. 
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Complaints a~:ainst National Banks 

Office the Comptroller of Currency, Customer Assistance Group 
1301 McKenney Street, Suite 3750 

Texas 77010 
Telephone: (800) 613-6743 
TDD: (415) 545-5976 

Complaints ai!ainst Federally Charted Savings and Loan Associations 

Office of Thrift Supervision 
P.O. Box 7165 
San Francisco, CA 94120 
Telephone: (800) 842-6929 or (415) 616-1500 

Web Site: www.ots.treas.gov 

Complaints against Federal Credit Unions 

National Credit Union Administration 
2300 Claxton Road, Suite 1350 
Concord, CA 94520 
Telephone: (925) 363-6200 

Web Site: W¥/W.ncua.gov 

Miscellaneous State Statutes Dealing with Discrimination in Public Accommodations, 
Businesses, and Services 

Other statutes deal with discrimination in the areas ofbusiness, services, and public accommodations 
and include the following: 

1. Business and Professions Code section 7071.14 prohibits the denial of a contractor's 
license bond solely on the basis of the applicant's or licensee's race, religious creed, color, 
national origin, ancestry, or sex. penalty for such discrimination is actual damages plus 
$250. 

2. Business and Professions Code sections 16721 and 16721.5 make it unlawful to exclude 
a person from entering into a business transaction or from pursuing a business, profession, 
vocation, or employment. It also makes it unlawful to discriminate in the transfer of funds 
or credit on basis of sex, race, religion, color, or national or ethnic origin. Such 
discrimination violates the Cartwright Act, California's antitrust law. (Bus. & Prof. Code, 
§ 16700 et seq.) Aggrieved persons may file a private lawsuit and recover triple damages, 
injunctive relief, and reasonable attorney's fees. 
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3. Civil Code section 51 prohibits business establishments discriminating against, 

5. 

6. 

8. 

10. 
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CHAPTERV 

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE/GOVERNMENT BENEFITS 

In California, people who apply for or receive public assistance have specific rights which protect 
them from discrimination in the administration of such programs. California Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 1 0000 states that aid shall be administered and services provided without 
discrimination on account of race, national origin or ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, or 
political affiliation. 94 

This code section pertains to persons applying for or receiving public assistance through any ofthe 
following programs: 

• Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) 
• California Medical Assistance (Medi-Cal) 
• County Medical Services Program 
• Food Stamps 
• In-Home Supportive Service (IHSS) 
• Multipurpose Senior Service Program 
• Social Services 
• SSI/SSP Special Circumstances Payments 
• Women, Infants and Children Program 

When you apply for or receive public assistance, the right provided you by Welfare and Institutions 
Code section 10000 must be respected by every person and organization you come into contact with 
in connection with public assistance, including, for example, county welfare departments, boarding 
homes and institutions, day nurseries, work or training programs, hospitals, nursing homes, doctors, 
dentists, and druggists. 

If you believe you have been discriminated against, you may file a complaint with your county 
welfare department's civil rights representative. Such a complaint must be filed within 180 days of 
the alleged discriminatory act unless the agency extends the time period. If the representative is 
unable to resolve your complaint, you may request an investigation. The county is then required to 
investigate the complaint and inform you of the outcome. If you are dissatisfied with the result of 
this investigation, you have 30 days to appeal the county's action to the appropriate federal agency. 

You have the right not to be retaliated against for either filing a discrimination complaint or for 
testifying, assisting or otherwise participating in the processing of a complaint. Any retaliation 
should be reported in the same manner as the original discrimination complaint. 

In connection with all of the previously listed public assistance programs, except for the Medi-Cal 
program, you may also file a discrimination complaint with: 

94Welfare and Institutions Code section 10001.5 excludes illegal aliens from public social 
services. (Added by Initiative Measure (Prop. 187, § 5, approved November 8, 1994).) 

57 





If you apply for or receive aid for aged, blind or disabled persons through the Supplemental 
Income/State Supplementary Program, you have rights similar to those stated above. Discrimination 
complaints concerning this program must be addressed to the Social Security Office nearest you 
since the Social Security Administration is the agency which handles discrimination complaints for 
this program. 

In addition, California has a general statute prohibiting unlawful discrimination in the administration 
of any program funded partially or fully by the State.95 Government Code section 11135, 
subdivision (a), states: 

"No person in the State of California shall, on the basis of ethnic group identification, 
religion, age, sex, color, or disability, be unlawfully denied the benefits of, or be 
unlawfully subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity that is funded 
directly by the state or receives any financial assistance from the state." 

If you have a discrimination problem which you believe is covered by Government Code section 
11135, you can file a complaint with the particular state agency that provided state funds to the entity 
which acted in an alleged discriminatory fashion. Any person, including interested third parties, can 
file the complaint. The complaint must be filed within one year of the alleged unlawful 
discrimination. However, if you do not discover facts about an unlawful practice until after the 
expiration of the one-year filing period, you have an additional 90 days to file a complaint. 

95 Congress has enacted a similar federal law, Title VI ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 
U.S.C. § 2000d), which prohibits discrimination in any program or activity receiving federal 
financial assistance when such discrimination is based on race, color or national origin. For 
information regarding your rights and remedies under federal law, you should contact the federal 
agency providing the financial assistance or an attorney. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 
1987,20 U.S.C. section 1681 et seq., also requires recipients of federal funds to comply with 
federal laws forbidding discrimination based on sex or blindness. 
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CHAPTER VI 

protected 
that education plays our society, 

has enacted numerous laws designed to promote equality in educational 
opportunities and to safeguard against practices public schools providing 
educational services. 

example, public school teachers are prohibited from giving instruction, and school districts are 
prohibited from sponsoring any activity which adversely reflects upon persons because of their race, 
sex, color, creed, handicap, national origin, or ancestry. 97 Instructional material used in public 
schools must not include matter which is discriminatory on the basis of race, sex, color, creed, 
handicap, national origin or ancestry.98 Scholarships, loans and grants must be awarded in a 
nondiscriminatory manner.99 Discrimination based upon sex is also prohibited in athletic programs 
provided by public schools or supported by public funds. 100 Also, the general prohibition against 
discrimination by any program receiving state funds applies to public schools. 101 

The legislative prohibitions against discrimination in education cover all aspects of the educational 
process, including teaching, course materials, financing, extracurricular activities and other matters. 
Violations of any of these laws should be brought to the attention of the governing body of the 
school, college, or university. 

The following miscellaneous California statutory provisions prohibit unlawful discrimination in 
education: 

1. Business and Professions Code section 1000-8 102 prohibits chiropractic schools from 
denying admission to blind persons solely on the basis of their blindness, and further 

96 Serrano v. Priest (1971) 5 Cal.3d 584. 

97 Education Code section 51500. 

98 Education Code section 51501. 

99 Education Code section 35316. 

100 Education Code sections 41,49023, and 66016. 

101 Government Code section 11135 et seq. 

102 Business and Professions Code section 1000-8 (West) (Stats. 1971, ch. 1755, § 7) was 
enacted pursuant to voter initiative and is an uncodified statute. West provides the code section 
number for ease ofreference. 
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practices. 

Education Code section 233.5 provides that each teacher shall endeavor to impress 
upon the minds of pupils the principles of moral justice free from discriminatory 
attitudes, practices, events or activities in order to prevent acts of hate violence. 

h. Education Code section 233.8 requires the State Department of Education, subject 
to available funding, to provide training to school district personnel in identifying and 
determining hate violence on school campuses. Pupils and teachers may participate 
in a grant program focused on fostering ethnic sensitivity, overcoming racism and 
prejudice, and countering hatred and intolerance, subject to available funding. 

1. Education Code section 235 prohibits racial, sex or ethnic discrimination in any 
aspect of the operation of alternative schools, charter schools, or the Demonstration 
Scholarship Program. 

J. Education Code sections 250-253 require educational institutions to submit 
assurances compliance reports and to conduct compliance reviews pursuant to 

violence. 

of state assistance or state student financial aid. 

Education Code sections 
HU.l<tUcVH and 
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Government Code section 
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and classes 
or sex. 

to race, 

16. Education Code section 72012 requires compliance by community colleges with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of Education Code sections 221.5, 221.7 and 66016. 
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21. 

Federal Laws 

sex, color, ~H·~"'' 
tenn "public any 

which receives federal financial assistance. 

schools. 

ofl972,42 
in education on the basis 

to public schools. 
educational institution 

Office Civil (OCR) statutes that prohibit discrimination in 
programs and activities that receive federal financial the Department of Education. 
Discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national · is prohibited by Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964; sex discrimination is prohibited by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972,42 U.S.C. § 2000c et seq; discrimination on the basis of disability is prohibited by Section 504 
ofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and 
age discrimination is prohibited by the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107). 
Furthennore, any private institution receiving federal funds must provide equal educational 
opportunities, pursuant to the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. 

The civil rights laws enforced by OCR extend to all state education agencies, elementary and 
secondary school systems, colleges and universities, vocational schools, proprietary schools, state 
vocational rehabilitation agencies, libraries, and museums that receive federal financial assistance 
from the U.S. Department of Education. Programs and activities that receive these federal funds 
must be operated in a non-discriminatory manner. Such programs or activities may include, but are 
not limited to: admissions, recruitment, financial aid, academic programs, student treatment and 
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Telephone: (415) 556-4275 
FAX: (415) 437-7783; TDD: (415) 
Email: OCR_ Sa:nFrancisco@ed.gov 
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The OCR national headquarters is located at: 

U.S, Department of Education 
Office for Civil Rights 
Customer Service Team 
Mary E. Switzer Building 
330 C Street, S.W. 
Washington, DC 20202 

Telephone: (800) 421-3481 
FAX: (202) 205-9862; TDD: (877) 521-2172 
Email: OCR@ed.gov 

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OCR/ 



103 Code 11135. 

104 Welfare Institutions Code section 14200.1. 

105 The Civil Rights Act also been interpreted to prohibit on 
basis of sexual orientation. (See Rolon v. Kulwitzky (1984) 153 Cal.App.3d 289 and Hubert v. 
Williams (1982) 133 Cal.App.3d Supp.l.) For a more complete discussion of the type of 
classifications prohibited by the Unruh Civil Rights Act and of the remedies available under that 
Act, see chapter III and chapter IV in this publication. 

106 42 u.s.c. § 12182. 

107 Civil Code section 51. 
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3. Health and Safety Code sections 1232, 1258, 1459, and 32128.10 provide that 
health facilities, county hospitals, and hospitals formed by hospital districts 

operations for contraceptive purposes cannot discriminate 
status, or 



1. 

Government Code section 3203 it 
activities of any officer or 

3. Labor Code section 1101 prohibits an from or enforcing any 
rule or policy forbidding or preventing employees from participating in politics. In addition, 
an employer cannot control or direct the political activities or affihations of its employees. 
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your federal · 
a section 1983 action, you should contact 
act has occurred. 

a manner you 
be appropriate. For more information regarding 

attorney as soon as possible after the alleged unlawful 

Finally, a be First, section 1983 
permits relief in the form of nominal, compensatory, and punitive damages, and/or injunctive relief, 
depending upon the circumstances. Second, attorney's can be recovered by the prevailing party 
in a section 1983 action. Third, no federal statute of limitations applies to section 1983, so state 
statutes of limitation will generally control section 1983 suits. In California, there is a one-year 
period to file section 1983 actions. 111 Many cities have adopted their own ordinances to supplement 
state forbidding contact your city attorney or a private attorney to 
see if your city has adopted such ordinances, and, if so, the procedures you must follow to assert 
your rights. 

111 Ricotta v. California (S.D.Cal. 1998) 4 F.Supp.2d 961,980, affd. (9th Cir. 1999) 173 
F.3d 1, cert. den. (1999) 528 U.S. 864. 



California Department 
Office ofthe 
Public Inquiry Unit 
P.O. Box 944255 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 
Telephone (800) 952-5225 Toll Free California) 

(916) 322-3360 
{800) 952-5549 Toll Free TTD (in California) 
(916) 324-5564 TTD 

Web Site: http://caag.state.ca.us/ 

112Legislation effective January 1, 2001. (Civ. Code,§ 52.3.) 
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